
High Peak Borough Council

COMMUNITY SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 20th June, 2018

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Cafe - Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

12 June 2018

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair 3 - 4

3. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 
i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
ii) Other Interests

4. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure 

5. Minutes of the previous meeting 5 - 8

6. Consultation on the Public Library Strategy (Presentation) 
A link to the consultation on Derbyshire County Council’s website is attached
https://derbyshire.gov.uk/council/have-your-say/consultation-search/all-
consultations/consultation-details/libraries-for-derbyshire.aspx

7. Community Right to Bid Policy 9 - 26

8. Ban on sky lantern releases from Council owned land 27 - 30

9. Alliance Environmental Services (AES) - Phase 2 - Transfer of Services - Fleet 
Management & Waste Collection 31 - 50

10. Select Committee Work Programme 51 - 52

11. Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Democratic Services to be 
advised of any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting) 

12. Exclusion of press and public 
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972

Public Document Pack

https://derbyshire.gov.uk/council/have-your-say/consultation-search/all-consultations/consultation-details/libraries-for-derbyshire.aspx
https://derbyshire.gov.uk/council/have-your-say/consultation-search/all-consultations/consultation-details/libraries-for-derbyshire.aspx


PART II
13. Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting 53 - 54

14. Leisure Centres - Contract Arrangements 

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Community Select Committee
Councillor S Young Councillor K Sizeland
Councillor R Atkins Councillor C Boynton
Councillor D Greenhalgh Councillor J Haken
Councillor P Hardy Councillor C Johnson
Councillor D Kerr Councillor R Quinn
Councillor E Siddall Councillor J Wharmby



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE CHAIRMAN OF A SELECT COMMITTEE  
 

Name of Committee: Community 
Position Applied For: Chairman  
 
Surname: Young 
 
Forename: Stewart 
 
Address: 16 Hollin Drive, Chapel-en-le-Frith, High Peak SK23 0NA 
 
Telephone number: 01298 812304 
 
E-mail address: StewartYoung@highpeak.gov.uk 
 
Information in support of your application:  
(This should include details of any relevant skills, experience or personal 
qualities and should be linked to the Person Specification and the Role and 
Responsibilities if possible)  
 
During my 11 years on the Council I have been vice chairman of Environment 
Select Committee for 2 years (now covered by Community Select Committee), 
vice chairman of Community Select Committee and chairman of the committee 
for the last 2 years.   Also I was vice chairman of Development Control 
Committee, chairman of the Regeneration Grant Committee for the central area, 
as well as chairman/Mayor of the Council. So with this background I know what a 
chairman’s job involves. During the time I have been involved with the 
improvement of our refuse collections and the waste transfer station/refuse site, 
with regular meetings with Veolia. I have been a member of the Joint Waste 
Working Group and would like to see this through until it concludes. Other 
projects have included the swimming pool upgrade and the Crescent upgrade. 
There’s been a good working relationship with housing officers to keep our stock 
in good order and sort other problems, especially after a fire. Also, now the 
change in relationships with DCC over the provision on sheltered housing stock 
and its running. 
 
This is a short resume of my knowledge to help with the working of the  
Committee. With this I would ask for your support in the position as chairman to 
continue the work of the Committee, as well as being involved with the review of 
the leisure contract and overseeing that money is spent on the correct new 
vehicles for both waste and maintenance. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

mailto:StewartYoung@highpeak.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 
 
 

COMMUNITY SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 

Meeting: Wednesday, 18 April 2018 at 6.30 pm in The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton 
 

Present: Councillor S Young (Chair)  
 

 Councillors R Atkins, D Greenhalgh (arrived at 6.35 p.m.), J Haken, P Hardy, 
C Johnson, D Kerr, R Quinn, E Siddall and K Sizeland 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors C Boynton and 
McCabe. 
 
Councillor Todd was also in attendance (until 7.10 p.m.) 
 

18/15 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
(Agenda Item 4) 
 
With reference to minute 18/30, Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service 
consultation – review of systems and ways of working at Matlock and 
Glossop, the Chair referred to a response received to the comments made 
by the committee, together with the additional information requested, which 
had been circulated to members. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2018 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

18/16 UPDATE FROM THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
Hardyal Dhindsa, Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire provided 
members with an update on the work of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner, since his election in May 2016.   
 
The work of the PCC is based around the Police & Crime plan which is a 5 
year plan from 2016 – 2021 which outlines pledges and promises and 
contains 7 strategic objectives, which are continually reviewed and 
refreshed as necessary.  Objective 2 had recently been added and was 
concerned with working to tackle the emerging threats of cyber and cyber 
related crime on individuals, businesses and communities, which was seen 
as a growing threat.   
 
The role of the PCC was to hold the Chief Constable to account, to set the 
force budget and council tax precept, to commission services of partners to 
deliver community safety initiatives and to set and update the Police and 
Crime Plan. 
 
A rural crime team had been established to crack down on rural and wildlife 
crime and delivered crime prevention tips, target criminals and take the lead 
on the investigation of rural crimes. Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Community Select Committee 
Wednesday, 18 April 2018 

 
 
Reference was made to the reduction in police grant of £16.32 million since 
2010/11, which had subsequently led to a reduction of 413 police officers 
and PCSO posts and 250 civilian staff within Derbyshire.  This year, the 
PCC had been allowed to raise the council tax precept by 6.4% which had 
enabled the establishment to be increased by 25, and investment to be 
made in technology to address cyber crime.  A campaign was also being run 
to have the home office police grant increased, rather than just raising 
council tax. 
 
In response to a query regarding cross-boarder crime, members were 
advised that cross-boarder operations were undertaken with neighbouring 
areas, with specific reference made to rural crime, drug issues and the use 
of automatic number plate recognition. 
 
The view was expressed that the tackling of cyber crime should be 
undertaken on a national and international level, with greater pressure being 
exerted on the internet providers and banks to assist.  This would also free 
up operational police officers to be more visible in local areas where local 
knowledge should be considered in the allocation of resources.  The 
Commissioner advised that work was being undertaken with the internet 
providers and banks to tackle cyber crime but that in order for this to be 
effective, some local knowledge was required. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the presentation be received with thanks. 
 

18/17 EAST MIDLANDS AMBULANCE SERVICE - UPDATE 
(Agenda Item 6) 
 
Craig Whyles, Service Delivery Manager for East Midlands Ambulance 
Service (EMAS) attended to provide members with an update on the 
Derbyshire Division. 
 
Following the challenges of 2016/17, an independent capacity and demand 
review was commissioned, the findings of which influenced the contract 
agreements for 2017/18 and allowed further investment in the service.  A 
number of operational and control centre staff had been recruited, including 
27 international paramedics, and career progression opportunities were 
offered.  57 new double crewed ambulances were delivered (14 in 
Derbyshire) which included 164 new defibrilators. A new electronic patients 
report form (over £3M investment) was also introduced, which allows direct 
liaison with GPs.  Performance standards had also been reworked so that 
performance was measured via the ambulance response programme (ARP) 
where every call was measured in mean time.  Rotas had been re-worked to 
ensure that ARP could be responded to appropriately.  Locally, during 
2017/18, work was on-going with acute hospitals to improve handover 
times, dedicated urgent care crews were in place and the division had been 
restricted into 3 areas. 
 
In response to a query regarding the estate, members were re-assured that 
the service were not looking to close stations, but were looking to work more Page 6



Community Select Committee 
Wednesday, 18 April 2018 

 
effectively.  The amount of resource would stay as they are in Buxton and 
New Mills, but other options should as co-location with other services could 
be an option in the future. Investment was been made in replacement 4X4 
vehicles and two 4X4 vans had been procured for use in specific situations.   
 
Regarding funding, it would require £20M to maintain standards and to 
deliver services which had been requested, the outcome of which would be 
presented to a future meeting of the committee.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the presentation be received with thanks; 
 
2. That a further update be made to the committee in a further 12 

months. 
 

18/18 SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
(Agenda Item 7) 
 
It was requested that the Derbyshire County Council consultation around the 
Public Library Service Strategy, specifically, the proposal that some libraries 
by transferred to a Community Managed Model be added to the work 
programme. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to the above amendment, the Select Committee Work 
Programme be noted. 
 

18/19 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
(Agenda Item 9) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 7 of Part I of Scheduled 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

18/20 REVIEW OF PUBLIC REALM CCTV SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM 
(Agenda Item 10) 
 
The Committee considered options for the future direction of the public 
space CCTV system and made recommendations to the Executive on the 
way forward. 
 
The meeting concluded at 8.11 pm 
 
 
CHAIR 

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Community Select Committee 
 

20 June 2018 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices attached:  Appendix 1 – Draft Community Right to Bid 
Policy  
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report:  

The Council adopted a Community Right to Bid/Assets of Community 
Value Policy in December 2012, based on the Council’s experience 
since that date and the growing body of case law amendments are 
proposed to the current policy.  

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 To approve the revised Community Right to Bid Policy 
(Appendix 1). 

  
 

3 Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The Community Right to Bid (provided for within the Localism 
Act 2011) came into force on 21st September 2012. It provides a 
mechanism for parish councils and voluntary bodies to request 
that buildings and land in their community is registered with the 
Council as an ‘asset of community value’.  The owner of land 
and buildings registered with the Council is required to inform 
the Council of their intention to dispose of these assets. Should 
eligible organisations express an interest in acquiring the land or 
buildings a moratorium on the sale is triggered during which time 

TITLE: Community Right to Bid Policy 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane - Executive 

Councillor for Finance and Operational 
Services 

 
OFFICER: Mark Forrester (Corporate Service Manager) 
 
WARDS:   All 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 2 

community groups or parish councils can seek to secure funds 
to make a bid to purchase the asset.  

 
3.2 The Council adopted a policy for dealing with the Community 

Right to Bid in December 2012. 
 

3.3 With the benefit of experience and the growing body of case law 
officers have reviewed the Council’s current Community Right to 
Bid Policy and processes. Drawing on lessons learned and case 
law, amendments to the current policy are proposed. 
 

 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The policy supports the Council’s aim: To help create a safer 
and healthier environment for our residents/communities to live 
and work.  

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 To approve the revised Community Right to Bid policy 
(Recommended). 

 
5.2 To not approve the revised Community Right to Bid policy (Not 

recommended). 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety – (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
No specific implications from the policy. Positive community 
activity strengthens communities and contributes positively to 
community safety. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
No implications from this report. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
No specific implications from this report. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
No specific implications from the revisions to the Community 
Right to Bid/Assets of Community Value Policy. 
 

6.5 Legal 

Page 10



 3 

 
The provisions of the Localism Act 2011 relating to the 
Community Right to Bid are mandatory on the Council.  
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
No specific implications. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
No implications.  

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
There is a risk of compensation claims from owners of land/ 
buildings incurring loss as a result of the sale moratorium being 
triggered in accordance with the legislation. 

 
 
7. Background and detail 
 

7.1 The Community Right to Bid (provided for within the Localism 
Act 2011) came into force on 21st September 2012. It provides a 
mechanism for parish councils and voluntary bodies to request 
that buildings and land in their community is registered with the 
Council as an ‘asset of community value’.  The owner of land 
and buildings registered with the Council is required to inform 
the Council of their intention to dispose of these assets. Should 
eligible organisations express an interest in acquiring the land or 
buildings a moratorium on the sale is triggered during which time 
community groups or parish councils can seek to secure funds 
to make a bid to purchase the asset.  
 

7.2 In December 2012 the Council adopted a policy for dealing with 
the Community Right to Bid.  

 
The Role of the Council 
 
7.3 Under the ‘Community Right to Bid’ provisions, the Council is 

required to: 
 

• Set up a process to enable local community and voluntary 
groups to nominate assets; 

• To adjudicate in accordance with Government Regulations 
on whether the assets can be included in a list of assets of 
community value; 

• Publish the list of assets of community value and also details 
of those assets that were nominated but unsuccessful, 
including the reason why the nomination was unsuccessful; 

Page 11



 4 

• Implement an internal review process should the owner of 
the nominated asset disagree with the Council’s decision that 
the nomination be successful; 

• Set up and monitor a moratorium process so that when an 
asset from the list comes on to the market, community 
groups have time to register their intent to bid and raise the 
necessary capital, and preventing the owner from selling the 
asset during the moratorium period; and 

• Operate a compensation scheme to compensate owners for 
loss or expense incurred as a result of listing and complying 
with any of the procedures required by the scheme. 

 
7.4 While Government Regulation set out much of the detail of how 

the Community Right to Bid is to be operated a growing body of 
case law has also been established as a result of 
appeals/challenges nationally. 
 

7.5 Since the adoption of the policy in 2012 the Council has dealt 
with 10 nominations - 7 have been listed as Assets of 
Community Value by the Council. Two nominations were 
refused and one withdrawn. There have been no appeals 
against listing. One community group made a successful bid to 
purchase a listed property. 
 
For comparison, the figures for Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council since the adoption of the policy in 2012 are:  the Council 
has dealt with 15 nominations – all 15 resulted in the property 
being listed as Assets of Community Value. There have been 5 
appeals by property owners against listing, 1 request for 
compensation (which was refused) and 1 appeal was escalated 
to the first tier tribunal but was subsequently dismissed. Four 
community groups have subsequently made successful bids to 
purchase the listed properties. 

 
7.6 With the benefit of experience and the growing body of case law 

officers have reviewed the Council’s current Community Right to 
Bid Policy and processes. Drawing on lessons learned and case 
law amendment to the current policy are proposed. 

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (People) & Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

  Mark Forrester 
Corporate Service 
Manager 

 
 

Page 12



 1 

 
  
Policy approved ????? 2018 
 
 

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

and 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT 

COUNCIL 
 
Council Policy: Community Right to Bid/Assets 
of Community Value 
 
 
 
 
 
Contents 
 
1. Introduction  
 
2. Background  
 
3. Process  
 
i) Listing  
ii) Review and appeals  
iii) Sale  
 
4. Policy Review  
 
5. Appendices 
 

A: The Process (flow charts) 
 
B: Assets of Community Value/Community Right to Bid Nomination 

form   

Page 13



 2 

1. Introduction 
 
This document sets out the Council’s policy for implementing the Localism Act 
2011 Part 5. Chapter 3: Assets of Community Value (known as the 
Community Right to Bid).  
 
This policy is in force from 6th December 2012. 
 
2. Background 
 
The Community Right to Bid (‘the Right’), is one of the new community rights 
derived from the Localism Act 2011. The aim of the Right is to empower 
communities wishing to protect valuable local assets (land and buildings). It 
requires the Council to maintain a list of assets in its area which are of 
community value. It requires the owners of listed community assets to notify 
the Council of an intention to sell listed assets and it provides the opportunity 
for the community to delay a sale in order to prepare a bid to buy it. 
 
The Right does not restrict in anyway who the owner of the asset can sell their 
property to, or at what price and it does not confer a right of first refusal to 
community interest groups. 
 
The Right does not apply to residential property or operational land as defined 
in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 Part 2. 
 
3. The Process 
 
The Government has published an Assets of Community Value Policy 
Statement and Statutory Regulations, which set out statutory elements of how 
the Right should operate. The Government has also published non statutory 
guidance (October 2012). However, how the Right will be administered in a 
locality has to be specified by the responsible local authority. 
 
This section of the policy statement explains our local process for operation of 
the Right.  
 
The process falls into three sections: 
 

• Listing 
• Review and Appeals 
• Sale 

 
A flow chart providing an overview of all the stages of our process is available 
at Appendix A. 
 
. 
 
 

Page 14



 3 

3.1 Listing 
 
The Council will complete this section of the process within 8 weeks of receipt 
of nominations. 
 
 

Stage.1 – NOMINATION 
 

The listing process is community led and is triggered by the receipt of a 
nomination. The Statutory Regulations specify what an asset of 
community value is, who can make a nomination and the information 
required in a nomination, which must be in written form (letter, email, e-
form).  

 
The criteria  

 
An asset is of community value if the Council judges that; 

 
• Current use of the building or land furthers the social well-being 

or social interests of the local community and it is realistic to 
think this use will continue, or there was a time in the recent past 
when the use of the building or land furthered the social well-
being or social interests of the local community and it is realistic 
to think there would be a time in the next 5 years when there 
could be use that would further the social well-being or social 
interests of the local community  , or its use in the past 5 years 
has done so; 

• That use is the main one and not ancillary; and 

• It is realistic to think that the building or land will continue to be 
used in a way which will further the social well-being and social 
interests of the community within the next 5 years; and 

• It does not fall within the list of exemptions 

The Localism Act 2011 provides that ‘social interest’ includes (in 
particular) each of the following: cultural interests, recreational 
interests, sporting interests. 

 
Organisations which are eligible to nominate 

 
Only parish councils and voluntary and community organisations with a 
local connection have the right to make nominations for assets to be 
included on the list. The Localism Act and associated regulations 
provide definitions of eligible bodies, these bodies include: 

 
• Neighbourhood Forums (section 61F of the Town & Country 

Planning Act 1990 – added by the Localism Act 2011) 

Page 15



 4 

• Parish Councils in respect of land in the parish council’s area 
• Unincorporated bodies (that has at least 21 individual members 

of 21 who are on the local electoral register) 
• A Charity 
• Company Limited by Guarantee (where profits are not 

distributed to members) 
• Industrial or Provident Society 
• Community Interest Company 
 

The form of nomination and information required 
 

Nominations must be in writing and include the following information: 
 

• Clear identification of the asset 
• Names of the current occupants of the asset and names and 

current or last known address of all those holding a freehold or 
leasehold estate in the asset 

• Reasons why it qualifies as an asset of community value 
• Identification of the nominating organisation and some proof of 

eligibility to make a community nomination 
 

The Council will provide a nomination form to assist applicants and the 
assessment process.  

 
 

Stage.2 – DECISION 
 

Asset owners (and any leaseholders) will be notified of the asset 
nomination and asked to make any comments as will any occupants of 
the property and, if there is one, the parish council.  

 
Having considered the information submitted with the nomination and 
any comments provided by the asset owners Tthe Council will assess 
decide whether the nomination:  

 
• Meets all criteria (above) 
• Fails to meet the criteria 
• Meets some criteria/ needs further consideration 

 
The Council will write to the nominating organisation and owner of the 
asset (and any lawful occupant)everyone else notified of the 
nomination outlining the decision and (including an explanation where 
the nomination was unsuccessful). This is called a ‘Decision 
Notification Letter’ 

 
There is no right or review or appeal for community groupsOnly the 
Owner of the listed land has a right of review (see below) although like 
all council decisions the listing can be subject to judicial review by an 

Page 16



 5 

interested party if the decision is taken without compliance with the law, 
unreasonably or unfairly. 

 
  
 

Stage.3 – LISTING 
 

The Council will maintain and publish in a single list: 
 

• Assets of Community Value 
• Assets Nominated but not accepted by the Council as fitting the 

Community Value criteria. 
 

The lists will be updated on a monthly basis and available for public 
inspection. The Council will publish these lists on our website, and Tthe 
Council will make hard copies available on request. 

 
3.2 Review and Appeals  
 
In some cases, aA landowner (land and/or buildings) whose asset has been 
included on the list of assets of community value may wish to ask the Council 
to review its decision. 
 
In such cases, the landowner must write to the Council within 8 weeks of 
receipt of the Council’s notification that the asset is to be listed. This request 
should be sent to:  rachel.rourke@highpeak.gov.uk 
 
The landowner must present a case for removing the asset from the list based 
on whatever evidence they consider appropriate, but it should be relevant to 
the following issues: 
 

• Whether or not the asset is eligible to be listed; 
• Whether or not the asset was nominated by an eligible group; 
• Any new factors which have come to light since the original nomination 

was made; or, 
• Any irrelevant orf improper matternner which the Council might have 

taken into account when reaching its original decision. 
 
The landowner should present this in writing in the first instance, but may also 
request an oral hearing and be represented at this hearing by whomever they 
wish.  If an oral hearing is not requested then the review will be considered on 
the papers submitted with the review. 
 
Asset listing reviews will be determined by a Local AuthorityCouncil Officer 
with appropriate seniority who has not been involved in making the original 
decision. 
 
If the Review agrees finds in favour of the asset owner then the asset is 
removed from the list, if not then the asset will remain on the list. 
 

Page 17



 6 

The Council will complete this review within 8 weeks of receipt of the review 
request, or a longer period by agreement of both parties and must notify the 
owner of its decision with reasons.  If the asset is removed from the list then 
the decision with reasons must be given to the person/group who made the 
nomination. 
 
 
Appeal: 
 
If a landowner is dissatisfied with the decision reached through the internal 
review process to maintain the listing of their land/property then they are 
entitled to appeal to an the independent First Tier tTribunal (Property) which is 
a Tribunal (akin to a court) specialising in land and property matters. If 
successful in their appeal then the landowner may apply to the council for 
reasonable costs. 
 
 
3.3 Sale 
 
Owners duty to notify the Council 
 
It is the responsibility of the asset owner to notify the Council of an intention to 
make a ‘relevant disposal’. This terminology is used because not all sales are 
covered by the Right, there are a number of exclusions specified in the 
Regulations for example transfers of the property as a gift or inheritance.  , 
these are: 
 
Transfers made other than for value i.e. a gift 
Transfers between members of the same family i.e. made as a sale as well as 
a gift 
Transfers due to the inheritance of the asset 
Sales by personal representatives in order to pay estate debts or cash 
legacies 
Transfers occasioned by resignation or death of partners in a firm of trustees 
of a trust 
Transfers between trustees, between a trust and settler, and between a trust 
and a beneficiary 
Business to business transactions of a going concern, where the intention is 
to continue the existing use of the asset 
Transfers where the listed asset forms part of a larger estate 
Disposals made as a result of pre-existing arrangements 
Transfers between connected companies 
Disposals of land made under existing statutory provisions that clash with the 
Assets of Community Value moratorium rules 
Provision of on-going public service delivery 
 
Interim Moratorium Period 
 

Page 18



 7 

Receipt by the Council of notification of a relevant disposal will trigger a 6 
week interim moratorium period in which community interest groups should 
decide whether they wish to prepare a bid to purchase an asset. 
 
The Council will publish the owner’s intention to dispose of the asset on its 
website so that relevant community interest groups can consider whether they 
would like to place a bid for the asset. The organisation which originally 
nominated the land/building for registration as a community asset will be 
contacted in writing. 
 
A community interest group is: 
 

• A Parish Council in whose area the asset lies, or 
• A body with a local connection which is constituted in one of the 

following ways: 
o A company limited by guarantee 
o An Industrial or Provident Society 
o A Community Interest Company 
o Any other body which is registered as a charity including a 

Charitable Incorporated Organisation 
 
At this stage community interest groups only need to express an interest in 
bidding, they do not need to provide any details of their bid. The expression of 
interestis will trigger a full moratorium period of 6 months in total from 
notification of the relevant disposal during which time a sale is barred and 
they are able to prepare a bid for the asset. It is important to note however 
that Tthe owner is under no obligation to accept this bid and is free to dispose 
of their asset as they wish. 
 
If a bid is not received duringAfter the full moratorium period of 6 months has 
ended then the landowner is free to dispose of their asset as they wish and no 
further moratorium period can be triggered for a protected period of 18 
months from the date that the council receiveds notification of athe relevant 
disposal. This provides the owner with 12 months in which to dispose of the 
asset freely. 
 
Full Moratorium Period 
 
If a relevant community interest group wants to place an offer, the Full 
Moratorium Period is launched to enable the group to develop offer to 
purchase offer. 
 
Any offer to purchase is made directly to the owner of the land/buildings and 
does not involve the Council. 
 
Protected Period 
 
Following the end of the Full Moratorium Period, the owner is free to dispose 
of their asset without further delay within 12 months. This is called the 
‘Protected Period’. 

Page 19



 8 

 
Claims for compensation 
 
Types of claim 
 
The owner of the listed asset may make a claim for compensation for any loss 
or expenses they may have incurred at a time when the land was listed, which 
they would not have incurred had the land not been listed. 
 
The following claims may therefore be made: 
 

• For Aany loss, arising from any period of delay in the owner entering 
into a binding agreement to sell the land, which has been caused by 
either the interim or full moratorium periods. 

• A claim for reasonable legal expenses incurred in a successful appeal 
to the First Tier Tribunal against the Local Authority’s decision to; 

 
I. List the asset 
II. To refuse to pay compensation, or 
III. With regard to the amount of compensation offered or paid 
 

Claims stage 1: The Iinitial Cclaim to the Council must be made in writing 
before the end of 13th week (90 days) after the loss orf expense was incurred 
giving supporting evidence for each part of the claim and the Council must 
give its decision with reasons as to whether the claim is accepted or denied. 
 
If compensation is denied then there are provisions for review and appeal 
which may be followed. The owner can place an application for compensation: 
this must be written, include amounts sought and supporting evidence. 
 
Claims stage 2: The Review of the Council’s decision must be made before 
the end of the 8 week period from which the Council provides the owner with 
a written response to the outcome of Stage 1. This must be written, include 
amounts sought and supporting evidence. 
 
Claims stage 3 - If owner is unhappy with the Council’s reviewing decision 
they can opt to take it to a First Tier Tribunal. And request compensation 
and reasonable legal costs. 
 
 
4. Policy Review 
 
This policy will be reviewed periodically and may be amended to take account 
of developing best practice locally and nationally, or new government 
guidance. 
 
 
5. Disclaimer 
 

Page 20



 9 

This policy document is not intended to provide any person with legal advice 
specific to any particular site or matter and contains general information only 
about the way in which the Council will normally deal with matters relating to 
assets of community value. You should consult a suitably qualified lawyer on 
any specific legal problem or matter. 
 
Any enquiries should be directed to ???  
 
 
. 
 
 

Page 21



 10 

Appendix A: The process 
 
Listings Assets 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Stage.1 – NOMINATION 
 
Nomination to list an asset can be provided in any written format 
(letter, email, e-form). 
Contact details of where to submit a nomination and an e-form are 
available at  www.highpeak.gov.uk/ 
 
 
 
 
 

Stage.2 – DECISION 
 
Asset owners and other interested parties will be notified of asset 
nomination and given time to comment. 
An initial checking process will be conducted by Council officers will 
checker whether the nomination 

• Meets all criteria 
• Fails to meet the criteria 
• Meets some criteria/ need further consideration 

The Decision will be made by the appointed Executive Councillor. 
The Council will issue a decision notification letter to all the 
interested parties. write to the nominating organisation and owner of 
the asset outlining their decision. This is called a ‘Decision 

  
 
Stage.3 – LISTING 
 
The Council will list all successful and unsuccessful bids (including 
explanation for why a bid was unsuccessful or not) 
 

Ei
gh

t W
ee

ks
 

What you need to know: 
 
• Complete the nomination form if you are interested in nominating an 

asset for the list, give as much detail as you can as to why you 
consider the land/property meets the criteria as an asset of community 
value. 
  

• The property (owner and occupier) and other interested parties, will be 
informed of the nomination and be invited to make comment. 

 
• All the information will be considered. 
 
• You will be informed within 8 weeks of the Council’s decision by a 

‘Decision Notification’ letter. 

Page 22

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/


 11 

 
 
Review and appeals 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Stage.1 – INTERNAL REVIEW 
 
The asset (i.e. land or building) owner can send a request to 
lodge a review of the Council’s listing decision within 8 weeks 
of the written notification of listing. 
 
This request should be sent to: 
 
rachel.rourke@highpeak.gov.uk 
 
Asset listing review will be determined by a Local Authority 
Officer of appropriate seniority who has not been involved in 
making the original decision. 
 

If the Review 
agrees finds in 
favour of the asset 
owner then the 
asset is removed 
from the list 
 

If the Review finds in 
favour of the original 
listing decision then 
the Owner has the 
option to take their 
appeal to a First Tier 
Tribunal 
 
 

 
Si

x 
W

ee
ks

 

What you need to know: 
 

• The owner of a listed asset can request that the Council reviews its 
decision. 

 
• Owners will be provided with information about how they can do this in the 

‘Decision Notification’ letter which will be sent to notifying organisations, 
occupiers and owners following the Councils decision. 

 
• Owners and notifying organisations will be informed by a ‘Review 

Notification’ letter within 8 weeks. 

Page 23



 12 

Sale 
 
 

Interim Moratorium Period 
 
Owners of listed assets who intend to dispose of their 
listed asset will need to contact the Council. 
 
This triggers an Interim Moratorium Period. 
The Council will publish the owner’s intention to dispose 
of the asset on its website so that relevant community 
interest groups can consider whether they would like to 
place a bid for the asset. 
 

Full Moratorium Period 
 
If a relevant community interest group wants to place an 
offer, the Full Moratorium Period is launched given to 
enable the group to develop offer to purchase offer.  Offers 
are made to the owner who may or may not accept them. 
 
Protected Period 
 
If no offer is made Ffollowing the end of the Full 
Moratorium Period, the owner is free to dispose of their 
asset without further delay within 12 months. This is 
called the ‘Protected Period’. 
 

What you need to know: 
 
• If you are the owner of a listed asset and intend to sell please notify 
rachel.rourke@highpeak.gov.uk 

 
Si

x 
w

ee
ks

 
 

Si
x 

m
on

th
s 

Tw
el

ve
 

m
on

th
s 

Page 24



 13 

Compensation 
 

 
 

Stage 1 - The Initial Claim to the Council 
 
Must be made before the end of 13th week (90 days) after 
the loss orf expense was incurred. The owner can place 
an application for compensation: this must be written, 
include amounts sought and supporting evidence. 

Stage 2 – The Review of the Council’s decision 
 
Must be made before the end of the 8 week period from 
which the Council provides the owner with a written 
response to the outcome of Stage 1. This must be 
written, include amounts sought and supporting 
evidence. 

Stage 3 - First Tier Tribunal 
 
If owner is unhappy with the Council’s reviewing 
decision they can opt to take it to a First Tier Tribunal. 
Aand request compensation and reasonable legal costs. 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



    

 
 
 

High Peak Borough Council 
 
 

Report to Community Select Committee 
 

20 June 2018 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached – None 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report: To consider the introduction of a prohibition on the 

release of sky lanterns from Council owned land and property to reduce the 
risk of harm and fire as outlined in the report. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 For the Executive to approve a ban on the sale and release of sky 
lanterns from Council land.  
 

 
3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The use of sky lanterns is becoming more popular at weddings, 
festivals and events. 

 
3.2 Sky lanterns (also known as ‘Chinese lanterns’) are small hot air 

balloons typically around 100cm high with a diameter of approximately 
60cm. They are made of paper with an opening at the bottom where a 
small fire is suspended.  The construction may involve wire, rope and 
string. Some are made from biodegradable materials. 

 
 

TITLE: Ban on Sky Lantern releases from Council 
Land  

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Leader of the Council - Councillor Tony 

Ashton  
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Mark Trillo – Executive Director (People) and 

Monitoring Officer 
   
WARDS INVOLVED: None Specific 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



    

3.3 The increasing usage is having a harmful impact on livestock and on 
 the environment due to litter. This is particularly impacting on the 
marine environment, farming industry and parks.  

 
3.4 Sky lanterns pose a serious threat to wildlife and livestock through both 

 ingestion and entrapment.  In addition, un-extinguished sky lanterns are 
a significant fire hazard and the metal waste can damage farm 
machinery and harm livestock, they are also a contributor to the 
defacement of land by litter and waste.  

 
3.5    Many national organisations already support the ban on sky lantern 

releases, including the RSPCA, RSPB, the National Farmers Union, the 
Marine Conservation Society and the Chief Fire Officers’ Association. 

 
 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The report supports the corporate aim of promoting a safe, fair and 
secure environment for residents, businesses and visitors through a 
range of activities.  

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 That the Borough Council prohibits the release of sky lanterns from all 
Council land (recommended). 
 

5.2 That the prohibition on the use of sky lanterns would also apply to 
events organised by third parties which are held on Council property. 

 
5.3 It is further recommended that the prohibition of sky lantern releases is 

incorporated into the terms and conditions of the Council’s contracts, 
leases, licences and entertainment licences organised for events held 
on Council owned land and property. 

 
5.4 That the ban of the release of sky lanterns is not approved (not 

recommended).  The option of not enforcing a ban would fail to 
safeguard the public and livestock. 

 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
The introduction of a ban on the release of sky lanterns from Council 
land could assist in the reduction of anti social behaviour and damage to 
animals, people and property. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
  
None. 

Page 28



    

 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity 
and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
The cost of introducing a ban from Council owned land, including any 
publicity and the introduction of a policy would all need to be considered.   
 

6.5 Legal 
 
The ban is not enforceable by law but can be included in Council 
policies and permission agreements for the use of Council land. The ban 
would have limited other legal implications. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
This proposal seeks to have a positive effect on the sustainability and 
well-being of residents and animal welfare in High Peak. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
None. 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
 None. 

    

7.  Background and Detail   

7.1  When sky lanterns (also known as Chinese lanterns) are released, they 
do not just disappear, they float back down to earth. There is evidence 
to show that the release of sky lanterns presents an avoidable fire and 
safety risk. There is also evidence to indicate that sky lantern releases 
are a risk to livestock and wildlife. 

 
7.2  In recent years local authorities, charities and other agencies have 

lobbied the Government calling for the ban of sky lanterns in the UK. 
 
7.3 The Government decided not to prohibit sky lanterns, but in August 

2014 the Trading Standards Institute, following discussions between 
Government and industry, issued an industry code of practice to 
provide guidance for manufacturers, importers, distributors and retailers 
of sky lanterns, covering their manufacture, and warnings and 
instructions that must be provided. 

 

Page 29



    

7.4    Sky lanterns do present a significant fire hazard, especially where the 
lantern is unable to stay upright in the air due to obstacles or the wind; 
the paper may ignite and become a fire hazard. The lantern may then 
travel to the ground whilst still lit and become a risk to crops, woodland 
and property. The worst related fire dealt with by the Fire Service was 
on the 1st July 2013 when a serious fire in the West Midlands, involving 
100,000 tonnes of recycling material and causing an estimated six 
million pounds worth of damage, was started by a sky lantern which 
landed at a plastics recycling plant in Smethwick. 

 
7.5     In relation to Animal Welfare, after contact with the ground the leftover 

thin wire frame will rust away very slowly, remaining a hazard to pets, 
wild animals and livestock that may ingest the material. Additionally 
many smaller animals may become entangled in the debris left on the 
ground. 

 
7.6     There are also significant risks to Consumer Safety as the product 

when lit shows a naked flame which could conceivably lead to injuries if 
used incorrectly or if obtained by children. 

 
7.7    Many national organisations already support the ban on sky lantern 

releases, including the RSPCA, RSPB, the National Farmers Union, the 
Marine Conservation Society and the Chief Fire Officers Association. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

     Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 

 
 
 

Page 30



 
 
 
 

 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Community Select Committee 
 

20th June 2018 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix A – Summary of Governance Arrangements 
Appendix B – Service Specification & Service Delivery requirements – Waste 
Collection Communications & Promotion 
Appendix C – Service Specification Schedule – Fleet Management  
Appendix D – Schedule 2 Performance Indicators Fleet Management 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Committee to consider the service 

specification, service delivery and performance framework for the services to 
be transferred to Alliance Environmental Service (AES) in the second phase, 
ensuring that future service delivery meets the requirements of the Council. 
 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Committee: 

 
• Support the development of the new operating arrangements; and  
• Request that the Executive approve the service specifications and service 

delivery requirements as detailed in Appendices B, C and D. 
 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 In June 2017 the Executive approved a report approving the establishment of 

the joint venture company for the delivery of Waste Collection, Street 

TITLE: Alliance Environmental Services (AES) – Phase 
2 – Transfer of Services – Fleet Management & 
Waste Collection 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 

Finance and Operational Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Stokes – Executive Director 

(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 

Cleansing, and Grounds Maintenance & Fleet Management Services.  This 
confirmed the governance arrangements to allow Alliance Environmental 
Services (AES) to be fully established. It also allowed for the first phase of 
transfer of services to the new company which was this Council’s waste 
collection service which was transferred in August 2017 following the end of 
the contract with Veolia Environmental Services. 

 
3.2 April 2018 the Executive approved a report that set out the proposed transfer 

of services to be included in phase 2. The second phase includes the 
following service functions: 

 
High Peak 
• Waste communications & promotion 
• Fleet management   

 
Staffordshire Moorlands 
• Waste collection (including communications & promotion) 
• Fleet management 

 
3.3 The Executive approved the principle of the transfer of these functions and 

requested that the Community Select Committee scrutinise the detailed 
operational arrangements prior to final approval by the Executive in June. The 
Community Select Committee was requested to scrutinise the financial 
arrangements which they did on 11th June. 

 
3.4 This report requests that the Committee consider the service specification, 

service delivery and performance framework for the services to be transferred 
in the second phase. 

 
 
4. How this report links with Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1 One of the four aims of the Council’s Corporate Plan is “to protect and 

improve the environment”. This includes an objective to deliver effective 
recycling and waste management. The successful delivery of this objective 
will be underpinned by the development of the new operating arrangements 
as outlined in this report. 

 
 
5. Evaluation of Options 

 
5.1  There are no options to consider 
 
 
6. Implications 
 
6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

None 
 

Page 32



 
 
 
 
6.2 Workforce 

No direct implications 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
The financial savings plan for AES provides for £1.2 million of on-going 
revenue savings.  
 

6.5 Legal 
The schedules that are presented in this report are part of the Service 
Operating Agreement that sets out the services provided by AES to the 
Council   
  

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 External Consultation 
Not applicable 
 

6.8   Risk Assessment 
Not applicable 
 

 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
Background Papers Location Contact details 

  Nicola Kemp – Operational Manager 
(Contract Management) 
Tel: 01538 395400 EXT. 4426   
Email: 
nicola.kemp@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 33

mailto:nicola.kemp@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
7 Background and Introduction 
 
7.1 In June 2017 the Executive approved a report with regards to the 

implementation of the joint venture company for the delivery of Waste 
Collection, Street Cleansing, and Grounds Maintenance & Fleet Management 
Services.  This confirmed the governance arrangements to allow Alliance 
Environmental Services (AES) to be fully established. A summary of the 
governance arrangements is attached at Appendix A.  

 
7.2   The governance structure of the company was developed following scrutiny 

conducted by a joint working group of members from both High Peak Borough 
Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. The working group 
considered areas of best practice including undertaking a number of site 
visits. The working group also produced a report setting out their findings and 
recommendations in respect of improving/maintaining recycling performance. 

 
7.3 In August 2017 the first phase of the transfer of services from the Councils to 

AES was agreed. This related to this Council’s waste collection service which 
was priority due to the existing external contract with Veolia coming to an end.       
 

7.4 April 2018 the Executive approved a report that set out the proposed transfer 
of services to be included in phase 2. The second phase includes the 
following service functions: 
 
High Peak 

• Waste communications & promotion 
• Fleet management   

 
Staffordshire Moorlands 

• Waste collection (including communications & promotion) 
• Fleet management 

 
7.5 The Executive approved the principle of the transfer of these functions and 

requested that the Community Select Committee scrutinise the detailed 
operational arrangements prior to final approval by the Executive in June. The 
Corporate Select Committee was requested to scrutinise the financial 
arrangements which they did on 11th June. 

 
7.6 The purpose of this report is for the Committee to consider the service 

specification, service delivery and performance framework for the services to 
be transferred in the second phase. 

 
 
8 Governance Arrangements 
 
8.1 AES is a subsidiary undertaking of ANSA (wholly owned by Cheshire East 

Council) which is partly owned by the two Councils. Each partner in the new 
company entered into a Shareholders Agreement, which set out the 
governance arrangements for the new company. The Shareholders 
Agreement contains reserved matters, i.e. major decisions regarding the 

Page 34



 
 
 
 

business, which may not be made without the consent of all parties within it; 
this provides the ability for the Councils to maintain control of the company. 
There is a Shareholder Board, made up of one member of each of the 
councils (Executive members of the Councils with the finance portfolio / 
responsibilities) and one ANSA board member. 

 
8.2 The agreement provides for the Councils to appoint 2 directors to the Board of 

Directors (currently the Chief Executive and the Executive Director & Chief 
Finance Officer) and protects the Councils’ rights in respect of those 
meetings. 

 
8.3 The primary document governing the arrangements between both councils 

and the new company is the Services Operating Agreement and contains the 
following provisions: 

 
• The main legal terms and conditions; 
• An outcome based specification setting out the works to be commissioned; 
• A method statement detailing how the specification will be met; 
• Details of how the services will be paid for; 
• KPIs; 
• Change protocol; 
• Benchmarking; 
• Schedules dealing with associated provisions around matters such as 

TUPE, pensions and termination of the agreement; and 
• Any lease(s) of premises. 

 
8.4 There are two separate contracts specifically for HPBC and SMDC, in 

substantially the same form save for any authority specific service variation as 
required. 
 

8.5 In relation to the services that are provided by the company to the Councils, 
there are schedules to the Services Operating Agreement which detail how 
the services are to be provided.   

 
8.6 For the waste collection service there are two schedules:  

 
• Service Specification (Schedule 1 Part 1) – which details the service 

objectives and scope of the services to be delivered; and 
 
• Service Delivery Requirements (Schedule 1 Part 2) - which details the 

policies and operational practices.  
 

8.7 For Waste Collection an addition schedule has been created to reflect the 
additional services that have been transferred in phase 2 i.e. communication 
and promotion. This is attached at Appendix B. 
  

8.8 For Fleet Management a Service Specification Schedule 1 Part 1 has been 
created which details the services required by this Authority. This is attached 
at Appendix C.   

Page 35



 
 
 
 

 
8.8 The key performance indicators as to the standard of provision of the newly 

transferred fleet management service will be as follows: 
 
• Vehicle availability per calendar month (Authority core fleet); 
• Operator Compliance Risk score or Traffic Commissioner interventions 

(Authority & Contractor until the Authority relinquishes its O licence); 
• No. of MOT failures or missed services/inspections per calendar month  

(Authority & Contractor core fleet); 
• Average speed of response to roadside breakdowns and/or recovery per 

calendar month (Authority fleet only); 
• Health & Safety: Workshop management – no of RIDDOR reportable 

accidents, accidents and near misses per quarter. 
 
8.9 The 2017-18 outturns and 2018-19 targets for all of the KPI’s listed at 8.8 are 

provided at Appendix D.  

Page 36



 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

Summary of Governance Arrangements 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 

Schedule 1 Part 2 – Additional Service Delivery Requirements  

HPBC waste support and communications 

 

1. Service Delivery and operational practices 
 

1.1 The Contractor will be responsible for undertaking of Waste minimisation, 
reuse and recycling initiatives to promote public awareness, education and 
involvement in the management of waste and to encourage correct usage of 
the Authority’s collection services. To include but not be limited to; 

i. Direct communications with householders and customers,  
ii. Notifying householders or Commercial Waste Customers  of 

contamination which has prevented a collection,  
iii. Maintaining the Authority’s webpages which promote the domestic and 

commercial waste and recycling collection services, 
iv. Provide daily web updates detailing any collection issues experienced 

by the Contractor and their planned actions to resolve these, 
v. Production and distribution of all promotional literature and/or 

communications to business premises, households or residents to 
ensure an awareness and understanding of all waste and recycling 
services available. All materials must be approved by the Authority’s 
Authorised Representative, 

vi. Production of draft communication materials for dissemination to local 
media. The Authority’s Authorised Representative will be responsible 
for the approval and undertaking of all communications to the local 
media,  

vii. Monitoring of policy adherence to and applications for; healthcare 
waste services at HPBC, larger refuse bins or assisted collections to 
include biennial reviews of eligibility, 
 

1.2 All communications should utilise best practice guidance and new 
technological developments in order to be effective and efficient, 
 

1.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for investigation, communication and 
enforcement activities with individuals or households relating to waste or 
waste related Environmental crimes.  
 

1.4 The Contractor shall provide written responses to planning application 
consultations which consider waste provision and access needs to facilitate 
waste collection services. 
  

Page 39



1.5 The Contractor will be expected to support the Authority in regards to 
provision of information enabling funding applications or by directly seeking 
funding through streams not open to Local Authorities, following approval to 
do so by the Authority’s Authorised Representative. 
  

1.6 The Contractor will be required to attend meetings or liaise directly with; 
community groups, Parish or Town Councils, departments or Officers of this 
Authority to facilitate smooth service delivery and encourage effective waste 
management. This may include attendance at Committee meetings as 
required. 

2.  Assets 

2.1 The Authority shall transfer the following assets to the Contractor free of 
charge: 

 • All waste communications material to include but not be limited to: 
• leaflets,  
• stickers,  
• pull up banners, 
• display boards. 

 

Page 40



APPENDIX C 

Schedule 1 – Services 

Part 2 - Service Delivery requirements 

Fleet Management services 

 

1. Background 
1.1 This document aims to clarify the arrangements made by High Peak Borough 

Council with the Contractor for the provision of Fleet Management Services. 

1.2 The Contractor shall deliver a flexible fleet management service capable of 
responding to usage, technical, regulatory and economic developments as 
they develop within the fleet industry whilst ensuring that the services best 
meet the Authority’s objectives within the overall constraints of providing 
affordability and value for money. 

 
2. Objectives 

2.1 The fundamental objective of this arrangement is to provide an efficient, 
environmentally and economically sustainable fleet management service. 

2.2 This Contract has the following key objectives in relation to fleet management: 

i. Statutory Duties: To ensure the provision of a legally compliant fleet for 
the Authority; 

ii. Sustainability: To protect and improve the environment and prevent 
pollution, including measures for the efficient use of fuel and energy 
and the use of new and clean technologies; 

iii. Value for money: Have regard to value for money principles and 
affordability within the Authority’s budgetary resources with the aim of 
reducing the cost of fleet provision and management for the Authority; 

iv. Continuity: Achieve a seamless transition from the current service 
provision, and to deliver ongoing service continuity in regards to fleet 
provision; 

v. Resource Management: conserve energy and raw materials; 
vi. Partnering: Support, facilitate and enable partnering between the 

Contractor and the Authority to facilitate continuous improvement of the 
Service for residents of the High Peak. 

 
3. Services to be delivered 

3.1 No constraints are placed on the Contractor as to the operational methods 
used for the performance of the Contract, save that they comply with the 

Page 41



requirements set out in this document, all legal obligations and within the 
affordability constraints of the Authority.   

3.2 The Contractor shall satisfy the Authority that sufficient flexibility is 
incorporated into the design of services to accommodate changes as a result 
of legislation at the most economically advantageous terms to the Authority. 

 
3.3 The Contractor shall provide, the following fleet management related Services 

to include but not be restricted to: 
1. Management of the Contractors Core Fleet:  

a. The Contractor is the Operators licence holder ensuring 
compliance with all relevant legal standards, Operators licence 
requirements and DVSA regulations.  

b. Provision of fleet as appropriate to the Services undertaken by 
the Contractor on behalf of the Authority as detailed by this 
Contract, 

c. Ensuring all vehicles used in service delivery are appropriately 
licensed, taxed, inspected, tested and insured and that records 
documenting such, are kept accurate and upto date. 
Accumulation risk should be included in the insurance cover to 
provide protection for all fleet. 

d. Undertaking of compliance checks and training for users of the 
Contractor’s core fleet to include but not be limited to: driver 
Licence or MOT Checks, driver hours monitoring, all relevant 
Driver training, defect reporting training, Vehicle and equipment 
familiarisation training, completion of random inspections and 
checks to determine compliance and driver suitability. Action 
should be taken as appropriate where non compliance is 
identified. 

e. Liaison with third party maintenance providers where 
arrangements have been transferred to the Contractor via 
novation to ensure correct vehicle inspection and maintenance 
processes are in place and maintained, 

2. Management of the Workshop: 
a. Operation and management of the Garage/workshop located at 

the HPBC Waterswallows Depot, Buxton to enable efficient and 
effective inspections, repairs and maintenance activities to be 
undertaken on both the Contractors and Authority’s core fleet in 
line with the operating hours of key services delivered by the 
Authority and its legal obligations.  

b. Provision of suitably experienced personnel to manage 
operation of the workshop and to ensure and parts are ordered 
and available to facilitate swift repairs and maintenance 
activities of both the Contractors and Authority’s core fleet.    

c. Provision of machinery, equipment and tools to carry out most 
kinds of repair, as well as undertaking servicing and 
maintenance of all vehicles and equipment. 

d. Provision of a timely breakdown recovery service, side of road 
repairs or recovery to the Leek or Buxton workshops to be 

Page 42



available 24/7/365 for both the Contractors and the Alliance’s 
core fleet, 

e. Notification to the relevant Authority Representative of any 
financial charges liable for repairs to vehicles resulting from 
accidents or driver damage/abuse, excess mileage charges, or 
any additional costs as a result of poor cleanliness. 

f. Provision of first aid, health and safety and spill kit facilities on 
all vehicles provided to the Authority or used by the Contractor, 
commensurate with the requirements of the Fire and other 
statutory authorities.  

3. Financing and purchase of fleet:  
a. Supporting the Authority in regards to decision making relating 

to all vehicle procurement activities. Consideration of best value 
shall be taken when considering capital purchase or alternative 
hire or lease options available to the Authority,  

b. Specification and procurement support for new fleet as required 
by the Authority or the Contractor, to include delivery to a 
requested location, 

c. Provision of finances to fund vehicle or equipment purchase 
when required by the Authority. 

4. Management of the Alliance Core Fleet:  
a. Maintenance provision for all vehicles and trailers used in the 

delivery of the Authority’s Services, to include those owned by 
the Authority or provided by third parties, including all repairs 
and replacement of parts and tyres, 

b. Maintenance of legal, efficient, clean and serviceable Vehicles, 
Containers and trailers used across the Authority for the 
provision of all of the Authority’s Services.  Vehicles shall meet 
EU emission or related legal standards and be inspected in 
accordance with DVSA inspection frequency regimes, 

c. Ensuring all vehicles are appropriately licensed, taxed, 
inspected and tested. The provision of insurance is the 
responsibility of the Authority for fleet that is operated and driven 
by the Authority’s employees solely, 

d. Provision of driver checks and training for users of the 
Authority’s core fleet to include but not be limited to: 

i. Driver Licence Checks – the Contractor should advise the 
Authority of instances of non-compliance, 

ii. Driver Training, 
iii. Defect reporting Training, 
iv. Vehicle and equipment familiarisation training. 
v. Driver’s licence/MOT/Insurance checks, keeping records 

and notifying the Authority of non-compliance. 
e. Provision of fuel via fuel cards or pumps at the Waterswallows 

Depot, Buxton as required to ensure continuity of the Authority’s 
Services, 

f. Provision of a suitable spare vehicle to the Authority when a 
mechanical defect prevents the vehicle from being available for 
use by the Authority or its personnel for a period of two 
Workings Days or more,  

Page 43



g. Checking of driver hour’s compliance, defect reporting 
effectiveness, conducting random inspections and driver 
suitability across the Authority’s departments where fleet is 
used. Notification is to be made to the Authority of any non 
compliance, 

h. Appropriate storage and management of documentation 
detailing all reported and repaired defects, inspections and any 
other testing appropriate to the vehicle to demonstrate 
compliance with all relevant legal standards. 

5. Management of Leased Vehicles: 
a. Provision of lease vehicles to nominated car users of the 

Alliance as requested by the Authority, 
b. Specification and procurement support for new lease vehicles as 

required by the Authority, to include delivery to a requested 
location. 

6. Provision of Grey Fleet Checks and training to include but not be 
limited to:   

a. Drivers Licence, MOT and insurance document checks to be 
conducted annually on those employees of the Authority who 
use their own vehicles in completing their duties and delivering 
Services to the Authority 

b. Notification to the Authority of instances of non-compliance, 
c. Driver or equipment training and assessments, 

 
4. Exclusions of service 

4.1 For clarity, the Authority will remain responsible for the provision of insurance 
for fleet that is still operated by the Authority and used by its employees in the 
course of Service delivery.   

5. Health, Safety & Welfare 

5.1 In providing the above services the Contractor and its employees shall: 
1) Adopt safe working practices as laid down in all current and future 

regulations, working rules, HSE guidance and legislation that apply to 
its activities,  

2) Take full note of the Authority’s Corporate Health and Safety Policies 
as amended from time to time and cooperate with the Authority in 
fulfilling its Health & Safety obligations, 

3) Be responsible for the suitable and safe use of all Equipment used in 
the provision of the service. No Equipment shall be used which may be 
unsuitable, unsafe or liable to cause damage, 

4) Provide to its employees suitable uniforms, work wear, protective and 
reflective clothing so that they are easily visible and obvious. In 
addition suitable welfare facilities shall be accessible to all employees 
employed in delivering services as set out in this document, 

5) Be responsible for the health and safety monitoring arrangements for 
both his own staff and visitors to facilities used by the Contractor in the 

Page 44



course of this Contract and sub-contractors, including the regular 
production of risk assessments. 

 
6. Change protocol 

6.1 The Contractor shall refer to the requirements as set out in Schedule 11 
Change Protocol when it wishes to propose any changes to: 

i. operating practices, 
iii. proposed changes to procedures and policies,  
iv. alterations to the location of workshops or maintenance facilities. 

 
7. Data Provision 

7.1 The Contractor is required to provide to the Authority information for the 
purposes of: 

i. comparison of the Contractor’s performance against relevant 
performance standards, 

ii. reporting of Key Performance Indicators, 
iii. management information, 
iv. information to enable responses to be provided to requests under the 

Freedom of Information Act, Environmental Information Regulations or 
the Data Protection Act. 

 
7.2 The Contractor shall submit the following to the Authority in respect of the 

performance of its obligations under the Contract, as follows: 

i. A performance monitoring report as detailed in Schedule 2 
Performance Monitoring. 

ii. A Service Delivery Plan – is to be provided by the Contractor to the 
Authority as per Schedule 6 of the Outsourcing Agreement. This 
document should include an overview of annual summaries of overall 
waste arisings information (including that collected and treated), 

iii. Any other information specifically requested by the Authority. 
 
8. Assets 

8.1 A number of assets transferred to the Contractor at phase 1 following the 
expiration of the previous contractual arrangements. This list of assets is 
detailed at Schedule 13 Leased assets as per the Services operating 
Agreement.  

 

8.2 The Contractor is responsible for the supply, repair and maintenance of those 
assets as detailed at Schedule 13, alongside all other items of equipment or 

Page 45



tools required for use within the workshop to support its safe operation and in 
order to efficiently maintain all vehicles, trailers and associated equipment. 

 

Page 46



APPENDIX D 

Schedule 2 Performance Monitoring  

Performance Framework – Key Performance Indicator’s (KPI’s) 

1. Performance Framework 

1.1 The Contractor shall monitor its performance of the Services against the KPI’s 
set out in this Schedule 2.  

1.2 The chart below details the reporting requirements placed upon the Contractor 
for the monitoring and reporting of its performance against each KPI, 
alongside the outturn for 2017-18 and the initial targets for 2018-19 (each 
Target KPI for the purposes of calculating minimum Service delivery 
requirements under this Agreement). The Target KPIs are the minimum levels 
of performance required by the Authority for each KPI indicated: 

PI 
no. Performance Indicator Reporting 

frequency 
2017-18 outturn 
(baseline year) 

2018-19 
target 

1 

 
Vehicle availability per 

calendar month  
(Authority core fleet)  

 

Monthly 94.49# 100% 

2 

 
Operator Compliance Risk 

score or Traffic 
Commissioner 
interventions 

(Authority & Contractor 
until the Authority 

relinquishes its O licence) 
 

Monthly Green Green 

3 

 
No. of MOT failures or 
missed services per 

calendar month  
(Authority & Contractor 

core fleet) 
 

Monthly 

1 MOT failure 
between Apr-Oct 

2017 
1 missed 

service/inspection 

0 
0 

4 

 
Average speed of 

response to roadside 
breakdowns and/or 

recovery per calendar 
month (Authority fleet 

only) 
 

Monthly 

Average response 
to roadside 

breakdown/recovery 
46 mins 

40 mins 
average 

5 
 

Health & Safety: 
Workshop management – 
no of RIDDOR reportable 

Quarterly 

0 RIDDOR 
No recorded stats 
are available on 

accidents or near 

0 RIDDOR 

Page 47



accidents, accidents and 
near misses per quarter 

misses. 

# refers to SFS performance for period Jan-Nov 2017. No December results provided by Contractor 

1.3 The Contractor shall provide to the Authority a Performance Monitoring 
Report, together with such supporting evidence as may reasonably be 
required by the Authority to enable the Authority’s Representative to fully 
monitor and review the Contractor’s performance under, and its compliance 
with, this Agreement. Each Performance Monitoring Report shall include as a 
minimum:  

• accurate records of performance against each of the KPI’s for the 
preceding calendar month, to include the year to date performance and a 
forecast of the outturn for the full year, 

• for any KPI which is off target, an explanation as to why the KPI is not 
being met, what efforts are being taken to rectify it and the outcome of 
those efforts, and 

• for annually reportable KPI’s - a calculation of the year to date 
performance and a forecast of the out-turn over the full Contract Year, with 
supporting information in the event that forecast levels of performance vary 
from performance over the year to date, 
 

1.5 Within 5 Business Days of the submission of a Performance Monitoring 
Report the Contractor’s Representative shall meet with the Authority’s 
Representative to (“Monthly Meeting”) discuss the contents of the monthly 
Performance Monitoring Report and the provision of the Services and they will 
use all reasonable endeavours to agree any actions that may reasonably be 
required to address any issues arising out of the Monthly Meeting. Any 
dispute arising out of a Monthly Meeting that cannot be settled between the 
Parties acting reasonably shall be referred for resolution under the Dispute 
Resolution Procedure. This shall be without prejudice to any other right of 
action that the Authority may have in respect of any performance failure or 
other breach by the Contractor. 
 

1.6 In addition, the Contractor shall during the first quarter of each Contract Year 
draw up and/or update (as applicable) a service delivery plan relative to the 
Agreement (“Service Delivery Plan”) which is to be provided to the Authority 
and maintained by the Contractor on a rolling three-year basis. 
 

1.7 The Service Delivery Plan shall include a detailed performance review of the 
Service provision during the previous financial year in a form required by the 
Authority (acting reasonably) which shall include as a minimum: 

• a summary of performance of all KPIs as set out later in this 
document, 

Page 48



• a summary of performance failures alongside an explanation as to 
why the KPI was not met, what efforts were being taken to rectify it 
and the outcome of those efforts in regards to future performance, 

• the Contractor’s proposals for measuring the improvement to the 
Services by means of revised  performance indicators. 

 
Within 5 Business Days of the submission of a Service Delivery Plan the 
Contractor’s Representative shall meet with the Authority’s Representative to 
(“Annual Meeting”) discuss the contents of the Service Delivery Plan and 
they will use all reasonable endeavours to agree any actions that may 
reasonably be required to address any issues arising out of the Annual 
Meeting. Any dispute arising out of an Annual Meeting that cannot be settled 
between the Parties acting reasonably shall be referred for resolution under 
the Dispute resolution procedure. This shall be without prejudice to any other 
right of action that the Authority may have in respect of any performance 
failure or other breach by the Contractor. 

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY 
Chairman: Councillor  

Vice Chairman: Councillor  
Lead Officer: M Trillo 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

20-June-
2018 

Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman   
Consultation on the Public Library Service Strategy DCC  
Assets of Community Value – Revised Policy Mark Forrester  
Ban on Sky Lanterns on Council Land Mark Trillo  
Leisure Contract Arrangements (P2)  Andrew Stokes  
AES Arrangements (P2) Andrew Stokes  
Work Programme   
   

8-Aug-2018 People for Places Health and Wellbeing Project Update / 
Annual Review and Performance 

PfP  

Sport and Physical Activity Strategy  David Stock  
Glossopdale bioliners project update Keith Parker  
Environmental Enforcement Annual Update David Smith  
Recycling Consistency - TBC Keith Parker  
Work Programme   
   

3-Oct-2018 Update from Derbyshire Police   
Work Programme   
   

5-Dec-2018 Work Programme   
   
   

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 10



COMMUNITY 
6-Feb-2019 Work Programme   

   
   

25-March-
2019 

Work Programme   
   
   

To add 
in/current 
and planned 
Sub-
Committees: 

Update on Glossop Household Recycling Centre  C Brailsford DCC 
Community Rights M Forrester  
Update from NWAS NWAS  
Update on review of Disabled Facilities Grant DCC  
Chartered Institute of Housing Review of Sheltered 
Accommodation 

Mark Trillo  

Non-financial update from Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan 

Helen Core  

Fairfield Road Update Mike Towers  
Adult Social Care Residential Care Policies and impact 
on HPBC 

DCC  

Monitoring of Alliance Environmental Services Andrew Stokes  
Care Together Programme Update Tameside and Glossop 

CCG (Jessica 
Williams) 

 

   
 

P
age 52



Document is Restricted

Page 53

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair
	5 Minutes of the previous meeting
	7 Community Right to Bid Policy
	Appendix

	8 Ban on sky lantern releases from Council owned land
	9 Alliance Environmental Services (AES) - Phase 2 - Transfer of Services - Fleet Management & Waste Collection
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	10 Select Committee Work Programme
	13 Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting

